
 

 

SERVICES COMMITTEE MEETING 
 

Monday, May 8, 2017 
 

6:00 pm 
 

HAMPDEN TOWN OFFICE 
 

A G E N D A 
 

1. MINUTES  
 

a. March 13, 2017 
 

2. COMMITTEE APPLICATIONS 
 

a. Susan O’Brien – Application for reappointment to Pool Board  
 

3. OLD BUSINESS 
 

a. Update on broadband grant – Kyle Severance, GIS/IT Specialist 
b. Recommended vendor and cost for contract for Design, Engineering and 

Permitting for Pool and Municipal Building Site – Angus Jennings, Town 
Manager 

c. Discussion of proposed FY18 budget for The Bus 
d. Update on Kiwanis operations and maintenance of Civic Center and its 

lease with the Town of Hampden (continued from March 13, 2017) 
 

4. NEW BUSINESS 
 

a. Request for authorization of $6179.89 from Recreation Clearing Account 
for the purchase of field maintenance equipment – Shelley Abbott, 
Recreation Director 

b. Request from Pebblestone Farm for permission to set up in Town Office 
parking lot concurrent with Hampden Farmers’ Market 

c. Discussion of FY18 Services Committee policy priorities 
 

5. PUBLIC AND STAFF COMMENTS 
 

6. COMMITTEE MEMBER COMMENTS  
 
 



 

 

SERVICES COMMITTEE MEETING 
 

Monday, April 10, 2017 
 

MINUTES – DRAFT   
 
Attending: 
 Councilor Dennis Marble, Chair  Town Manager Angus Jennings    
 Mayor David Ryder    Resident Jane Jarvi 

Councilor Stephen Wilde   Resident Patricia Russell 
 Councilor Mark Cormier   Bangor Asst. City Manager Mike Crooker  
 Councilor Terry McAvoy   The Bus Superintendent Laurie Linscott 
 Councilor Ivan McPike 
 
Chairman Marble called the meeting to order at 6 p.m. 
 

1. MINUTES  
 

a. March 13, 2017 – Motion by Councilor McAvoy seconded by Mayor Ryder 
to approve the meeting minutes. Approved 6-0. 

 
2. COMMITTEE APPLICATIONS 

 
a. Jane Jarvi – Application to Library Board of Trustees – After 

discussion with the applicant about her prior service through the Friends of 
the Library, there was a motion by Councilor McPike seconded by 
Councilor Wilde to recommend Council appointment of Jane Jarvi to the 
Library Board of Trustees. Motion carried 6-0. 

 
b. Patricia Russell – Application to Library Board of Trustees – After 

discussion with the applicant about her prior service on the Millinocket 
Library Board, there was a motion by Councilor McPike seconded by 
Councilor Wilde to recommend Council appointment of Pat Russell to the 
Library Board of Trustees. Motion carried 6-0. 

 
3. OLD BUSINESS 

 
a. Report on yesterday’s (April 9, 2017) Volunteer Open House and 

Community Forum – Angus Jennings, Town Manager – Manager 
Jennings reported regarding the event, the participation of nearly 25 local 
civic organizations, public attendance, and the potential that the event will 
encourage further collaboration both between the Town and civic 
organizations and among various civic organizations. The Committee 
expressed that this had been a worthwhile effort, and had been well 
publicized to the community. 

 

townmanager
Typewritten Text
1-a



 

 

b. Meeting with Bangor representative(s) of Community Connector Bus 
regarding projected operating and vehicle (new bus) costs and 
timing – Michael Crooker, Assistant City Manager – Mr. Crooker 
representing the City of Bangor presented Hampden’s projected FY18 
operating costs for The Bus, as well as estimated costs to secure an “end 
of life rehab” bus to serve the Hampden route. While the City of Bangor is 
still in its budget process the City officials had confidence in the numbers 
presented. Operating costs were projected at $89,911. The City had been 
looking at mid-life bus overhauls in the cost range of $175,000 or new 
buses for $75-100,000 more, but had been able to secure $239,652 in 
grant funds toward two “end of life” bus overhauls. This would offset costs 
of $253,600 and, as a result, Hampden’s cost to receive one of those 
rehabbed buses would be about $7,000. This would be projected to have 
a useful life of six years, so would last until about 2024. The bus would be 
35 feet – so larger than needed – but this was recommended as the most 
cost effective approach at this time. Mr. Crooker also reported that the Bus 
has applied for a technology grant that would allow for tablets to be added 
to buses which would improve their ability to collect data regarding 
ridership. Councilor McAvoy said he is not in favor of the bus at all. Mr. 
Crooker said he is not here to twist arms. Chairman Marble asked what 
percentage of bus expenses are paid by Bangor and Mr. Crooker said 
70%. Chairman Marble thanked Mr. Crooker and Ms. Linscott for their 
work and they exited the meeting. 

 
c. Presentation of statement from Bronco Travel Soccer Club regarding 

their plans for 2017 Soccer Camp and potential to work together next 
year – At the request of the Board of Bronco Travel Soccer, their 
statement was entered into the meeting record: “The Bronco Travel 
Soccer Club board has decided not to partner with the Hampden 
Recreation Department this year for the annual summer soccer camp. 
This decision was driven by the amount of time it has taken to attempt to 
come to a contract agreement between both parties. Over the course of 
the past two and half months, when the original contract was first provided 
to the town, negotiations have not progressed leaving BTSC no other 
option than to run a camp on their own due to the time constraints we are 
under to finalize camp preparations. In the future, BTSC continues to be 
open to a future partnership with the town regarding summer camp, but 
negotiations need to occur in a more timely manner. Thank you for your 
time over the past few months as camp discussions have occurred. We as 
a board look forward to strengthening our relationship with the town.” 
 

4. NEW BUSINESS 
 

a. Update on status of Request for Bid Proposal for Design, 
Engineering and Permitting for Pool and Municipal Building Site, 
including report on pre-bid meeting held with prospective vendors 



 

 

on Friday, April 7 – Angus Jennings, Town Manager – Manager 
Jennings informed the Committee of questions that had come in either 
within or since the pre-bid meeting, and the responses that were circulated 
to prospective vendors and posted to the Town website as Addendum 1. 
Councilor Wilde asked whether plans for a community center would be 
made public and Manager Jennings said that the Scope of Work will allow 
the Town to direct the consultant to prepare a couple of alternate design 
concepts, and one could include a land set-aside for a community center if 
that reflects the Council’s intent. 

 
b. Discussion of potential policy to limit membership on Town Boards 

and Committees to Town residents – request of Councilor McAvoy – 
Councilor McAvoy said he is aware of at least 2 or 3 non-residents on the 
Pool Board, and said he does not think it is appropriate. He referred to 
representation without taxation. Councilor McAvoy made a motion to not 
accept non Hampden residents to serve on Town Boards and 
Committees. The motion died for lack of a second. 

 
c. Review of new Marina Park signage, accurate property survey 

boundaries, and proposed signage installation – Angus Jennings, 
Town Manager – Manager Jennings summarized the updated property 
survey information now available reflecting the accurate division between 
public and private land at Marina Park. The Committee agreed it would be 
worth correcting the sign before it is posted. 

 

5. PUBLIC AND STAFF COMMENTS – None. 
 

6. COMMITTEE MEMBER COMMENTS – None.  
 

There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 6:55 PM. 
 
Respectfully submitted –  
Angus Jennings, Town Manager 



townmanager
Typewritten Text
2-a



townmanager
Typewritten Text
3-a



Angus Jennings <townmanager@hampdenmaine.gov>

Update on Pool site RFP for engineering services 
1 message

Angus Jennings <townmanager@hampdenmaine.gov> Fri, Apr 28, 2017 at 12:18 PM
To: Town Council <towncouncil@hampdenmaine.gov>
Cc: Paula Scott <clerk@hampdenmaine.gov>
Bcc: Sean Currier <publicworks@hampdenmaine.gov>, Shelley Abbott <recreation@hampdenmaine.gov>

Council,
   We had initially planned to schedule interviews at Monday's Finance Committee with the two shortlisted firms (WBRC
and Woodard & Curran), with a recommendation for contract award to Council later that night. 
   The logistics didn't work out between vendors and Councilors' schedules, so instead I am setting up interviews with both
firms to include Sean and Shelley.  If less than a quorum of Councilors would like to attend the interviews I will look to the
Finance Committee to designate representative(s) at Monday's meeting.  The interviews will be during the day on May 8:
one is confirmed for 11 AM, we are still coordinating a time with the other vendor. 
   With this revised approach, a vendor recommendation will be made to the Services Committee on May 8.  The Services
Committee could either forward a recommendation to Council on May 15, or if the Committee wishes to conduct interviews
with the shortlisted firms (or either of the firms that was not shortlisted), it would have the opportunity to do so at the May
15 Finance meeting.  
   Both shortlisted firms have verified that a delay on contracting will not affect their ability to deliver on the timing in their
proposals (since the RFP estimated May 10 for contracting and, even with the delay, I see May 16 as achievable). 
   It will be important that both interviewed firms are asked the same set of questions (although followup clarification
questions may differ).  If anyone has questions they'd like asked at the interviews, please provide them to me by Thursday
May 4.  I'll work with Sean and Shelley (and any Council rep(s)) to finalize a slate of questions for interviews on May 8.

The bid tab, all four proposals received, and the initial RFP and Addendum 1 are all posted online here.  We also have a
few extra hard copies if anyone would like to borrow.

Thanks,
 Angus

 

Angus Jennings
Town Manager 

Town of Hampden 
106 Western Avenue 
Hampden, ME  04444
(207)8623034
townmanager@hampdenmaine.gov

Under Maine's Freedom of Access ("Right to Know") law, all email and email attachments received or prepared for use in matters concerning Town
Business or containing information relating to Town business are likely to be regarded as public records which may be inspected by any person upon
request, unless otherwise made confidential by law. If you have received this message in error, please notify us immediately by return email. Thank you
for your cooperation.

http://www.hampdenmaine.gov/vertical/sites/%7B1FCAF0C4-5C5E-476D-A92E-1BED5B1F9E05%7D/uploads/BidProposals_PoolSite.pdf
mailto:townmanager@hampdenmaine.gov
townmanager
Typewritten Text
3-b



Table of Contents
Pool Site Design and Permit Completed Bid Tab....................................................................... 1

AE Hodsdon Bid Proposal With Maps........................................................................................ 3

CES Bid Proposal....................................................................................................................... 44

WBRC Bid Proposal................................................................................................................... 88

Woodward and Curran Bid Proposal.......................................................................................... 116

Request for Bid Proposals - Pool site design and permitting - 3-27-17...................................... 160

townmanager
Typewritten Text
Note: All four proposals received are summarized on the attached bid tab, and are posted online at the Recreation Department section of the Town website:

townmanager
Typewritten Text
http://www.hampdenmaine.gov/vertical/sites/%7B1FCAF0C4-5C5E-476D-A92E-1BED5B1F9E05%7D/uploads/BidProposals_PoolSite.pdf

townmanager
Typewritten Text
They are not included here due to file size.

townmanager
Typewritten Text

townmanager
Typewritten Text
The complete RFP and Addendum 1 are included in the April 10, 2017 Services Committee meeting packet posted to the Town website.

townmanager
Typewritten Text
Sean, Shelley and I will conduct interviews on Monday and I expect to offer a recommendation on Monday evening.



TOWN OF HAMPDEN 
 

Pool Site Engineering & Permitting 
BID TABULATION 

 
April 20, 2017 

3:00 pm 
 

BIDDER AMOUNT 

 
A E Hodsdon Engineers 

Task 1               $ 3,133.50 
 
Task 2               $22,021.00 

 
CES, Inc 

Task 1               $ 5,000.00- $6,000.00 
 
Task 2               $22,000.00- $24,000.00 

 
WBRC 

Task 1               $  2,010.00 
 
Task 2               $10,210.00 

 
Woodard & Curran 

Task 1               $  3,755.00 
 
Task 2               $11,735.00 

  

 
 

 

  

 
 

 

townmanager
Typewritten Text



Town Manager Proposed FY18 Budget May 3, 2017 ver. 2

Hampden Town Manager Proposed FY18 Budget
Expense

2016 2016 2017 2017 2017 FY18 FY18 Change
Budget Actual Budget YTD YTD % 4/25 Initial Town Mgr FY17 to FY18 Notes

Dept/Div:  25‐10  THE BUS / THE BUS 81.9%

MISC

55‐15 THE BUS 82,000.00 61,039.71 84,597.00 63,446.25 75.0% 89,911.00$            89,911$                $5,314
Also proposed ~$7k in reserve 
budget for "new" bus.

THE BUS 82,000.00 61,039.71 84,597.00 63,446.25 75.0% 89,911.00$           89,911$                $5,314

M:\!Angus files\Budget\FY18 Budget\FY18 Budget workbook 34 of 50
Budget Meeting Schedule at

www.hampdenmaine.gov/budget

townmanager
Typewritten Text
3-c



  
TO:  Services Committee 

FROM: Angus Jennings, Town Manager 

DATE:  May 5, 2017 

RE:  Kiwanis Civic Center 
 

 

The Kiwanis Club currently leases the Town-owned Civic Center next to Irving (lease 
attached). In addition to their use of the building for their regular meetings, they make 
the building available for the following regular and periodic uses: 
 

Meals on Wheels (at least once a week) 
Hampden Seniors’ Club (every Thursday luncheon; and their monthly meeting) 
Farmers’ Market (every Friday through the winter months) 
Levi Rounders square dancers (Monday night) 
Boy Scouts (every Wednesday) 
Cub Scouts (some Tuesdays) 
AA group (every Sunday) 
Kiwanis Bean Suppers (monthly on Saturdays) 
Girl Scouts (as needed) 
Community suppers/fundraisers (misc.) 

 

In addition to Kiwanis, some of the organizations such as Boy Scouts also rely on this 
space for equipment and materials storage. Over the term of its lease (which was most 
recently extended in 2014 but which dates back many years), Kiwanis has made many 
improvements to building flooring, kitchen, lighting, heating, windows etc. 
 
Due to declining membership in Kiwanis, over the past few years the annual building 
operating costs (~$8,500 to $9,500) have comprised roughly half or more of the Club’s 
total annual revenues. (Their current and past couple of budget reports are attached).  
 
At their meeting last night, the Club members voted unanimously to request that the 
Town agree to amend their lease terms such that, for a period of one year (FY18), the 
Town would absorb the O&M costs for the building, during which time the Club would 
redouble its ongoing efforts to expand its membership and its capacity to get its 
fundraising back to where it was in past years. During this time, the Club would continue 
to oversee the building’s physical upkeep, booking of reservations, making sure doors 
are unlocked, lot is plowed, building is secure after events, etc. Periodic check-ins 
would take place during this “bridge year” to see if Kiwanis Club will be on track to 
resume the current lease terms or whether longer term changes could be proposed.  
 
I have met with Kiwanis on a few occasions in order to talk about budgeting and 
operational implications if the current lease is modified (or, at some point, terminated). 
At Monday’s meeting we will review based on Committee direction whether financial or 
operational changes should be taken into account in the Town’s FY18 budget. 

Town of Hampden 
106 Western Avenue 
Hampden, Maine 04444 
 

 

Phone: (207) 862-3034 
Fax:   (207) 862-5067 
Email: 
townmanager@hampdenmaine.gov 

 

townmanager
Typewritten Text
3-d



















townmanager
Typewritten Text















townmanager
Typewritten Text
4-a













townmanager
Typewritten Text
4-b



Lura Hoit Pool site analysis to determine 
feasibility for potential expansion of 
parking and athletic fields; initiate DEP 
permitting

Recreational Facilities Planning; decide 
whether or not to extend Skehan
Center lease and on what term and 
subject to what conditions, and update 
Capital Program

Possible Bog Road acquisition of public 
rights to Souadabscook

Evaluate long‐term planning for Library 
(i.e. current or alternate facility)

Broadband Feasibility Study

Establish level of service expectations for 
seasonal Town Center flag displays

Continued and enhanced recognition of 
and support for local civic and 
volunteer individuals and organizations

Establish facilities operations and 
maintenance plan for public 
recreational facilities, including library, 
in coordination with partnering user 
groups and taxpayers

Recreation Affiliated Programs ‐ clarify 
terms of agreements incl. cost sharing

Next steps toward enhancing broadband 
availability (after current study 
complete)

Marina Park improved internal signage, 
NOAA‐funded informational kiosk

Improve visibility of Papermill Park with 
signage on Coldbrook Road

Public Parks – pursue grant‐funded 
improvements as available

Review/Amend Harbor Ordinance

Work with civic organizations, residents 
and businesses to create Community 
Resource Guide

Clarify Outdoor Facilities Ordinance (incl. 
whether Rules & Regulations were 
adopted/are needed)

Update Library Ordinance for consistency 
current practice on Board of Trustees

Create policy to allow for one‐day beer 
and wine licenses for events at the 
Library

Execute new Cable Franchise Agreement 

Create comprehensive walking trails map

Public Parks – pursue grant‐funded 
improvements as available

Present Future (FY18) and on

A

B

C

D

Vital

Important

Optional

Worthless

Prioritization Matrix © FranklinCovey Products, LLC

SERVICES COMMITTEE

townmanager
Typewritten Text
4-c

townmanager
Typewritten Text
Discussion Draft




